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Arthur Glass
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2 April 2002

Noel Gregory 

Acting Secretary

Legal and Constitutional Committee

Parliament House

Dear Mr Gregory


Re: Migration Legislative Amendment (Procedural Fairness) Bill

I refer to your invitation to comment upon this Bill and make the following four brief points as to how the proposed changes may affect the existing procedures under the present Migration Act.

First, Clauses 51A, 97A, 118A, 127A, 357A and 422A are identical in form but the legislative context of clause 97A is different from the other five instances.  Section 97A is in a subdivision dealing with cancellation of visas on the basis of incorrect information. Here the notice provision (s 107) does not require that details of adverse information be given to the visa holder. Compare this with the operation of the counterpart to this provision elsewhere in the Act - ss 57, 120, 129, 359A and 424A. With regard to the part of the Act surrounding 97A, a basic aspect of the fair hearing rule is not even in the Subdivision. With the consequence that persons subject to cancellation under this Subdivision would only be entitled to a diminished form of natural justice.

Second, clauses 357A and 422A deal with The MRT and RRT respectively. Each Subdivision has a formulation of the fair hearing rule; 359A, 424A. But these provisions apply to the process of the review, not to the actual hearing itself. At present the Tribunals give notice under these provisions usually before the hearing and then check just prior to writing the decision whether the original notice raised all the relevant matters. Due process at the hearing is treated as a separate matter. Independently of ss 359A or 424A members are meant to ensure that the hearing is fair, the applicant is given the opportunity to respond to adverse material, etc. The effect of the Bill could be to subsume the idea of the fair hearing rule under the limited obligations of 359A or 424A so that the normal rules have no effect upon the actual hearing. An odd result. With the consequence that issues such as - not giving due notice of relevant matters at the hearing, unreliable interpreters, failure to allow for an adjournment, etc - would be examined by a supervising court, if at all, only under the basic idea that this resulted in no real hearing.

Third, apart from the anomaly raised in point one above, there are existing obligations in the various parts of the Act for immigration decision makers to provide adverse information to the applicant (or visa holder).  But there are exceptions to this obligation. Importantly it does not apply to information provided by applicants or visa holders themselves. For this reason it might not be said that the presently existing obligations are a proper vehicle for the “fair hearing rule”. For compliance with them will not always lead to the result that the person subject to administrative power is told of matters adverse to their interests. The present obligations are limited to informing such persons of information provided by others adverse to their interests.

Finally, it is said that the amendments to the code of procedures do not affect in any way the privative clause arrangements of s 474. This is not strictly so. It removes one possible ground for s 474 and the surrounding provisions to operate upon. And going in the other direction, by introducing the idea of “the natural justice hearing rule” it invites a review court to separate out other aspects of natural justice and, either find a place for them within the Hickman exceptions, or more convincingly, treat them as defects that on a proper reading of the Act are not intended to be protected by s 474. These other aspects of natural justice are the rule against bias (actual and apprehended) and, on some formulations, the demand that the decision be based on “rational grounds” (this can be, and is put, in different ways). If decisions infected with these problems are seen as unprotected by s 474, judicial review may not be greatly reduced.

Yours faithfully

Arthur Glass
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